
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
Town of Camden 

 Select Board 
May 20, 2025 – 6:30 pm 

French Conference Room 
 

Select Board meetings are  
 web streamed at: www.youtube.com/TownofCamdenMaine 

For those wishing to participate remotely, please click the link below to join the zoom meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82053577680 

 
Call to Order 

 
1. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 

 
2. Approval of Board Minutes April 15, 2025 & May 6, 2025 
 
3. Public Hearings: (New Owners requires a public hearing for first 5 years) 

a) Barren’s Restaurant at 2 Wayfarer Drive for a renewal Class A Restaurant Liquor License 
b) Camden Charcuterie at 56 Elm Street, Unit A for a new Class A Restaurant Liquor License 
c) Peter Ott’s (new owners) at 16 Bay View Landing for a new Class A Restaurant Liquor License 
d) Salt Wharf at 3 Wayfarer Drive for a renewal Class A Restaurant Liquor License 
e) Villager Café at 25 Mechanic Street for a new Class A Restaurant Liquor License 

 
4. Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of renewal Victualer & Lodging Licenses:  Blue Barren, Camden Charcuterie, Camden 
Cone, Cedar Crest Inn, Fresh Restaurant, Harbor Dogs, Norumbega Inn, Paper Plane, Peter 
Ott’s, Salt Wharf,  Swan House 

b) Approval of  Camden Hills Regional High Schools March Thru Town on Monday, June 2nd  at 
5:30 pm 

 
5. Select Board Reports   

 
6. Town Manager’s Report 
 
7. Discussion Items 

a) Sagamore Farm Solar Buyout & Expansion 
 
8. Action Items 

a) Daysailer Request to Permanently Switch License: Sloop Heritage to Sloop Inherit the Wind 
b) Approval of new Police Cruiser 
c) Approval of 39 Main Street Dangerous Building Order 
d) Confirmation of Alternate Code Enforcement Officer Andrew Lowe 
e) Approval of FY 26 Wastewater Budget 
f) Approval of Wastewater Agreement w/ Rockport 
 
 

9. Adjournment 
 

http://www.youtube.com/TownofCamdenMaine
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82053577680


 
Select Board Minutes 1 

Minutes of Meeting 2 
April 15, 2025 3 

 4 
PRESENT: Chair Susan Dorr, Vice Chair Christopher Nolan, Tom Hedstrom, Alison McKellar, Ken 5 
Gross and Town Manager Audra Caler 6 
 7 
Please go to  http://www.youtube.com/TownofCamdenMaine to view the entire meeting or 8 
the video recording minute marks in these minutes to hear full discussion.  Please note MRS 9 
Title 1, §403 Record of meetings  only requires recording of attendance of members and 10 
actions of the Board.  The statute also states that video and audio recordings of public 11 
meetings satisfies the requirement, should any conflict arise between these minutes and the 12 
video record, the video record is considered the official public record.  13 
 14 

1. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items:  (Video Recording Minute Mark 0.54) 15 
 16 

Eileen Curtis Kleinman is pleased to hear that her advocacy for having an ambulance 17 
stationed next to the firehouse in Camden will hopefully appear on the ballot in June. She feels 18 
this will improve access to faster medical care in emergencies for residents and she 19 
appreciates the progress. 20 

 21 
 (Video Recording Minute Mark 4:37) 22 
 Manager Caler explained a last-minute change to the agenda. 23 
 24 
 The town received bids for the Molyneaux Road sewer extension today, which includes a 25 

pump station. Due to rising costs for mechanical components, the opportunity to move 26 
forward with the project is significant because the bids are competitive. There's a tight 27 
timeline, and the goal is to get an expedited decision from the Select Board so that the 28 
necessary equipment for the project can be purchased. Delaying by a few weeks could 29 
increase costs, so it's important to act quickly. Bid scores are included in the packet for 30 
review, and input from the board is encouraged. 31 

 32 
2. Approval of Board Minutes March 18, 2025 & April 1, 2025 (Video Recording Minute Mark 33 

5:56) 34 
 35 

McKellar moved, Nolan seconded to approve the minutes of March 18, 2025 & Apil 1, 36 
2025.  The motion passed on a 5-0-0 vote. 37 

 38 

3. Consent Agenda ADOPTED (Video Recording Minute Mark 6:39) 39 
a) Approval of road closure for Bay View Street for the Camden Art Walk 40 
b) Approval of victualer & lodging licenses 41 
c) Extension of Mercantile Winter Dockage 42 
d) Confirmation of Town Manager’s appointment of Andy Skrivanich as Inland 43 

Harbormaster 44 
e) Approval of license agreement for 7 Dillingham Point for underground utilities 45 
 46 
Nolan requested a discussion about Mercantile Dockage and appointment of Inland 47 
Harbormaster. 48 

http://www.youtube.com/TownofCamdenMaine
https://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/1/title1sec403.html
https://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/1/title1sec403.html
https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=65
https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=262
https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=356
https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=356
https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=389


Camden Select Board 
Minutes of Meeting – Page 2 
April 15, 2025 
 

Caler explained that the Mercantile requested to extend its dockage at Camden Harbor from 49 
April 30 to May 25, 2025, due to a scheduled haul-out in Rockland. The harbormaster had no 50 
objections, stating it wouldn’t interfere with harbor operations, as the busy season begins in 51 
June. 52 
 53 
McKellar moved; Nolan seconded to approve the extension for Mercantile until May 54 
25th  at the prorated rate of $200, consistent with the previous agreement.  The 55 
motion passed on a 5-0-0 vote. 56 
 57 
Manager Caler explained that the inland harbor master role was originally part of the police 58 
department, with Chief and other officers sharing the responsibilities and stipend. Due to 59 
staffing shortages, the police could no longer support the role after the first year. 60 
The fire department, having expanded, is better positioned to take over. Andy Scrivanich, a 61 
full-time firefighter and experienced lake guide, was selected for the role given his 62 
knowledge of Barrett’s Cove, Bog Bridge, and lake infrastructure. He has agreed to take on 63 
the duties. 64 
 65 
McKellar and Nolan moved to appoint Andy Skrivanich as Inland Harbormaster. The 66 
motion passed on a 5-0-0 vote. 67 
 68 
No other comments and all other items on consent agenda were adopted. 69 
 70 

4. Select Board Reports (Video Recording Minute Mark 17:48) 71 
McKellar: Megunticook Watershed: She attended a meeting with the Megunticook 72 
Watershed Association to discuss improving the lake level and dam operations policies. They 73 
are aiming to set clearer guidelines for when and how much to draw down the lake ahead of 74 
storms.  The goal is better flood prevention without harming lake use or ecology. 75 
Gross: Historic Resources Committee: The Historic Resources Committee discussed the 76 
Montgomery Dam but is not making a formal statement yet. They have requested to 77 
participate in the discussion on the Montgomery Dam warrant article. 78 
Dorr: Harbor Committee:   The Committee is reviewing fees and planning updates to better 79 
reflect current standards. They are also working to realign the harbor channel due to 80 
misplaced moorings and are addressing steamboat ramp replacement, now scheduled to 81 
begin April 28, with completion expected before the boating season. 82 

 83 
5. Town Manager’s Report (Video Recording Minute Mark 26:48 84 

• Town report materials (Select Board report, dedication, cover photo) are due 85 
Thursday, April 17th 86 

• Kerry Leichtman, Town Assessor testified in Augusta this week on short-term rentals 87 
and a homestead exemption amendment (which was not passed).  The homestead 88 
exemption was raised to $50,000, though the start date is unclear. 89 

• Dave St Laurent, Public Works Director will be inducted into the Franco-American 90 
Hall of Fame by the legislature on Wednesday, April 23rd at 10:00 a.m. 91 

 92 
6. Public Comment from Public for FY 26 Budget (Q&A) (Video Recording Minute Mark 93 

29:05) 94 

https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=1074
https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=1600
https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=1748
https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=1748


Camden Select Board 
Minutes of Meeting – Page 3 
April 15, 2025 
 

 95 
Marc Ratner: Emphasized the urgency of addressing the Camden Library roof repair, calling 96 
it critical to the historic building’s preservation.  Strongly supports the plan to expand 97 
Camden Fire Department to 24-hour service, including new staff and ambulance coverage — 98 
considers it essential.   He also provided an update on the Call Center (as County 99 
Commissioner).  The Knox County call center has faced challenges but is now on a positive 100 
trajectory with improved staffing.  Thanks were given to Camden Police and Fire 101 
departments for their support.  Towns likely won’t need to create independent call centers, 102 
potentially saving money and reducing hassle. 103 
 104 
Manager Caler shared a request from Rockland City Manager Tom Luttrell, asking area 105 
towns to consider contributing funds in their FY26 budgets to support the Emergency 106 
Warming Center at the Flanagan Community Center. The funding would help keep the center 107 
open seven nights a week during the coldest months. Caler noted that Camden and other 108 
towns are already well into FY26 budget planning, but the request was acknowledged for 109 
future consideration. 110 

 111 
7. Action Items (out of order) 112 

 113 
b) Approval of FY 26 Budget (Video Recording Minute Mark 35:50) 114 
 115 
The Board discussed the town's budget for the upcoming fiscal year, covering various 116 
departments and projects including public works, community services, and capital 117 
improvements. The board also addressed several specific issues, such as the Molyneaux 118 
Road sewer extension and pump station project, and snow bowl window replacement. 119 
 120 
General Government     2,721,282 121 
(Town Office Codes, Assessing, Insurance, ITT, Professional Services) 122 
Public Safety      4,421,167 123 
(Police Dept, Dispatch, Fire & EMS) 124 
Public Works     2,228,800 125 
(Public Works, Streets & Sidewalks, Paving) 126 
Community Services            24,000 127 
Community Provider Agencies funding) 128 
Culture & Recreation    2,249,050 129 
(Harbor, Library, Parks) 130 
Debt/Capital/Contingency   3,628,321 131 
Total Town Budget      $15,272,620 132 
Total Town Revenues    $8, 523,733 133 
Net General Fund Budget    $6,748,887 134 
The Select Board’s recommendation represents a net increase in expenditures of 3.07% from 135 
the prior financial year. 136 
 137 
McKellar moved; Nolan seconded to forward the above Select Board 138 
recommendations to the June Annual Town Meeting Ballot. The motion passed on a 5-139 

https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=2143


Camden Select Board 
Minutes of Meeting – Page 4 
April 15, 2025 
 

0-0 vote. 140 
 141 

a) Bid Award: Molyneaux Road Sewer Extension (Video Recording Minute Mark 1:48:30) 142 
The Select Board along with Town Manager and Wastewater Superintendent St. Laurent 143 
discussed the installation of a new pump station, highlighting the complexity of the project due 144 
to its electrical and mechanical components. They noted the potential cost impacts from tariffs, 145 
as some parts are sourced from China. After reviewing the bids, the Board chose to award the 146 
contract to Ford Enterprises, whose bid was significantly lower than Ranger.  The project is 147 
grant-funded and will be covered by a bond. 148 
 149 
McKellar moved; Gross seconded to award the bid to Ford Enterprises for the Molyneaux 150 
Road Sewer Extension based on their low bid received of 1,962,950.  The motion passed 151 
on a 5-0-0 vote. 152 
 153 
c) Approval of Town Meeting Warrant (Video Recording Minute Mark 2:05:00) 154 
Article 1: Electing a moderator (still necessary even though the town no longer holds open 155 
meetings). 156 
Article 2: Elections for select board and MSAD28 CSD positions. 157 
Article 3: A zoning code amendment to increase the number of beds at Bowden Cottage from 12 158 
to 18. 159 
Article 4: A zoning amendment to set a minimum size requirement (190 sq. ft.) for accessory 160 
apartments. 161 
Article 5: Changes to pesticide regulations, including amended notice requirements and 162 
exemptions for certain applications. 163 
Article 6: The Pleasant Ridge Homeowners Association is transferring ownership of a 164 
stormwater detention pond and surrounding green space to the town. 165 
Article 7 Removal of Montgomery Dam 166 
Discussion took place on the proposed removal of Montgomery Dam and the associated costs 167 
and implications. Several speakers expressed concerns about the lack of clarity in the warrant 168 
article, the absence of cost estimates, and the potential impact on the town's finances. They also 169 
questioned the inclusion of unrelated issues in the article, such as sea level change and coastal 170 
storm surge, and the potential for misleading voters. Some speakers suggested simplifying the 171 
language and separating the issues into separate warrant articles.  172 
 173 
The Select Board discussed the wording and content of the warrant article relating to the 174 
removal of the Montgomery Dam in Camden. They debated the clarity and potential bias of the 175 
language, with some suggesting changes to make it more concise and less persuasive. They also 176 
discussed the importance of including certain conditions and information in the article.  177 

 178 
McKellar moved, Dorr seconded to recommend the following wording for Article 7:  Shall 179 
the Town vote to authorize the removal of the Montgomery Dam and spillway (Tax Map 180 
120  Lots 278 and 283) to return the river to a free-flowing river in a manner generally 181 
consistent with Scenario C of the Findings and Recommendation of the Megunticook 182 
River Citizens Advisory Committee; with the following conditions: 1) The Town is 183 
authorized to fund the work only from non-property tax revenue sources e.g. grants and 184 
private donations; and, 2) Any portion of the project impacting Harbor Park shall be 185 

https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=6510
https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=7266


Camden Select Board 
Minutes of Meeting – Page 5 
April 15, 2025 
 

subject to the approval of the Library Board of Trustees as stipulated in the deed of gift 186 
from Mary Louise Curtis Bok to the inhabitants of the Town of Camden? 187 
The motion passed on a 4-1-0 vote (Gross opposed) 188 
 189 

Article 8: Authorizes the purchase of a fire truck to replace Engine 5, with the first payment due in 190 
FY28. 191 
 192 
Article 9: Appropriates $350,000 to replace the gable end wall (window wall) of the Snow Bowl 193 
lodge. 194 
This is an appropriation to replace the gable end wall which everyone calls the window wall of the 195 
Camden Snow Bowl lodge to be raised by taxation this does not include any other buildings or 196 
handicap access 197 
 198 
Article 10: Approves the acceptance of a quitclaim deed to obtain ownership of 58 Elm Street, 199 
otherwise known as the Elm Street School. 200 
 201 
Article 11: Should Article 10 be approved, authorize the Select Board to enter into a Lease 202 
agreement with the Children’s House Montessori School with a five-year notice. 203 
 204 
Article 12: Approves the acceptance of a permanent easement from the Mountainside Community 205 
Cooperative at 53 Mountainside Park, for the Town to have access and install public sewer 206 
infrastructure including a pump station building with a wet well and a generator. 207 
 208 
Article 13: Approves the acceptance of a quitclaim deed for 21 Cobb Hill Road and lot 102 of tax 209 
map 115, for $30,000. 210 

 211 
Article 14: Sets October 15 and April 15 as the due dates for taxes and fixes the interest rate on 212 
unpaid taxes at 8%. 213 
 214 
Article 15: Allows for pre-payment of taxes but does not require the Town to pay interest on pre-215 
paid taxes.   216 
 217 
Article 16: Authorizes the Select Board to accept gifts and grants. 218 
 219 
Article 17: Authorizes the Select Board to sell tax acquired property with the exception of the 220 
Tannery. 221 
 222 
Article 18: Authorizes the Select Board and Town Manager to dispose of personal property 223 
pursuant to the Town’s Purchasing Regulations. 224 
 225 
Article 19: Authorizes the Select Board to transfer no more than 10% of the unexpended balances 226 
from any budgetary category to another. 227 
 228 
Article 20: Authorizes the appropriation of $236,000 from the General Fund to subsidize 229 
operations of the Camden Snow Bowl. 230 
 231 



Camden Select Board 
Minutes of Meeting – Page 6 
April 15, 2025 
 

Article 21: Appropriates funds from non-property tax revenue sources to be used to reduce the 232 
property tax commitment. 233 
 234 
Article 22: Approval of the FY26 Municipal Budget.  Voters will be asked to approve the bottom-235 
line number recommended by the Select Board.  The recommendations of both the Select Board 236 
and Budget Committee will appear on the ballot. 237 
 238 
Dorr moved; McKellar seconded to approve the town meeting warrant for June 10, 2025. 239 
The motion passed on a 5-0-0 vote. 240 

 241 
d) Approval of Purchase of Equipment for Paid Parking Program (Video Recording Minute Mark 242 

4:26:24) 243 
 244 
Nolan acknowledged that Caler initially recommended delaying the paid parking 245 
implementation due to concerns about the uncertain economic environment, such as tariffs and 246 
potential negative perceptions, even though the long-term cost may increase if postponed. He 247 
suggested that despite the potential challenges, the delay might be the best choice this year. 248 
 249 
Manager Caler clarified since the Board included the revenue from paid parking in the budget 250 
had already been made and approved she feels comfortable moving forward.  She also pointed 251 
out that delaying due to uncertainties might prevent progress, suggesting that if they keep 252 
waiting for the perfect conditions, nothing will ever get done.  253 
After extensive research and comparison, she recommends selecting Flowbird based on its 254 
proven reliability, cost-effectiveness, and user-friendly features. Key advantages include: 255 
• Durable kiosk design with modular components for easy upgrades. 256 
• Modern payment options like Text-to-Pay and Text-to-Extend—no app required. 257 
• User-friendly features such as “Find My Car” and free instructional launch materials. 258 
• Customizable back-office portal for discounts, holiday rates, and enforcement tools. 259 
• Significant cost savings on citation paper, software management, and transaction fees. 260 
• Automated citation reminders improve compliance. 261 
• Aesthetic match with dark green kiosks to blend with lampposts. 262 
Flowbird presents a robust, flexible, and cost-efficient solution that meets the Town’s parking 263 
management needs. 264 
 265 
McKellar moved, Dorr seconded to approve staff recommendation to purchase the 266 
Flowbird/Butts based on their quote for $259,425 plus desired options, Alternate #s 1-4. 267 
 268 
Board discussion, Chair called for the vote on motion on the floor. 269 
Nolan would rather still wait one year, he does not feel this is the right year.   270 
 271 
The motion passed on a 3-2-0 vote.  (Nolan, Gross opposed) 272 

 273 
8. Adjournment (Video Recording Minute Mark 4:36:02) 274 

Nolan moved; Dorr seconded to adjourn the meeting at 11:06 pm.  The motion passed 275 
unanimously. 276 

https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=15989
https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=15989
https://youtu.be/ac0JwtKgvwA?t=16570


Camden Select Board 1 
Minutes of Meeting 2 

May 6, 2025 3 
 4 

PRESENT:  Vice Chair Christopher Nolan, Alison McKellar, Ken Gross, Town Manager Audra Caler. 5 
 6 
ABSENT:  Susan Dorr and Tom Hedstrom 7 
 8 
Please go to  http://www.youtube.com/TownofCamdenMaine to view the entire meeting or 9 
the video recording minute marks in these minutes to hear full discussion.  Please note MRS 10 
Title 1, §403 Record of meetings  only requires recording of attendance of members and 11 
actions of the Board.  The statute also states that video and audio recordings of public 12 
meetings satisfies the requirement, should any conflict arise between these minutes and the 13 
video record, the video record is considered the official public record.  14 
 15 
Vice  Chair Nolan called the meeting to order. 16 
 17 
1) Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items –(Minute Mark 0.27 18 

No public comment 19 
 20 

2) Public Hearings:  (New Owners requires a public hearing for first 5 years) 21 
(Minute Mark 0.51)) 22 
 23 

a) Application of Rick Johnson, d/b/a Camden Hideaway Inn for a renewal Class V Bed & 24 
Breakfast Wine License 25 

b) Application of Meanwhile, LLC, d/b/a Paper Plane at 1 Wayfarer Drive, Unit 102 for a 26 
renewal Class I Restaurant Liquor License 27 

c) Application of Norumbega Hospitality Corp, d/b/a The Norumbega Inn at 63 High Street 28 
for a renewal Class V Bed & Breakfast Wine License 29 
 30 

Nolan opened for public hearing for any opponents and proponents. 31 
 32 

 McKellar moved; Gross seconded to approve the liquor licenses listed above.  The motion 33 
passed on a 3-0-0 vote. 34 

 35 
3. Consent Agenda (Minute Mark 3:42) 36 

a) Approval of CABG’s Annual Business is Blooming Sidewalk Sale on the weekend of May 37 
16-18 38 

b) Approval of Temporary Event Signage for Camden Festival of Poetry – May 8-17 39 
c) Approval of request from Camden’s Rotary to close Atlantic Avenue for the Music by the 40 

Sea concert on July 4th. 41 
d) Approval of renewal Victualer & Lodging Licenses:  Buttermilk Kitchen, Hartstone Inn, 42 

Hideaway Inn, Laugh Loud Smile Big, River Ducks Ice Cream, and The Waterfront 43 
Restaurant 44 

e) Approval of Designation of Registrar of Voters’ office hours for the upcoming June 10, 45 
2025, Annual Town Meeting & Confirmation of Election Warden 46 

f) Approval of Countersignature of the Warrants for the Five Town Community School 47 
District Budget Referendum and MSAD 28 District Budget Referendum 48 

Adopted 49 

http://www.youtube.com/TownofCamdenMaine
https://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/1/title1sec403.html
https://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/1/title1sec403.html
https://youtu.be/aT5Q2WRhsHo?t=27
https://youtu.be/aT5Q2WRhsHo?t=56
https://youtu.be/aT5Q2WRhsHo?t=226


Camde Select Board 
Minutes of Meeting – Page 2 
May 6, 2025 

 50 
4) Select Board Reports (Minute Mark 13:12) 51 

McKellar: attended two impactful community events at the Opera House—one focused on 52 
cancer awareness and the other a fundraiser for the Wayfinder School. Both had empty seats, 53 
raising the question of how to make such events more accessible, particularly for families.  Also 54 
shared plans for a waste diversion audit at MCSWC (transfer station) to improve recycling and 55 
reuse of building materials, with the goal of reducing landfill waste and potentially generating 56 
revenue. Noted Camden’s Arbor Day celebration is happening on May 20th at the library, 57 
including tree planting and talks about the town’s street tree program. 58 
Gross:  Historic Resources Committee is still working on the historic preservation ordinance 59 
and plans to present a 10-minute update to the Select Board. They were hoping to be on this 60 
agenda but maybe the next meeting. 61 

 62 
5) Town Manager’s Report  (Minute Mark 20:30)  63 

License Plates: New Pine Tree license plates will replace the Chickadee design. Residents can 64 
reserve numbers online. 65 
Town Meeting: Scheduled for June 10, 2025, featuring 22 warrant articles and elections for 66 
Select Board and School Board. 67 
Fire Department: Reported a successful Easter egg hunt and a service transition to Northeast 68 
Mobile Health Services. 69 
Code Office: Provided updates on short-term rental registration and inspection. 70 
Harbor Department: Addressed repairs at the Steamboat Landing boat launch. 71 
Police Department: Announced paid parking at the public landing starting May 15, and 72 
welcomed Officer Christopher Therrien. 73 
Public Works:  Chestnut Street (from Route 1 to Mid Street) will be milled starting Thursday 74 
street will be closed and no parking during milling—exact timing to be determined.  Bay Road 75 
and Wilson Avenue will also undergo milling in the coming week, with advance notice.  Paving 76 
will occur later in the season when weather permits.  Molyneaux Road sewer extension to 77 
Mountainside Park is on track following today’s kickoff meeting. 78 
 79 

6) Action Items (Minute Mark  34:42) 80 
a) Approval of  License Agreement for kayak racks at Barrett’s Cove & Bog Bridge  81 
 82 
The town’s 2017 agreement with Brian Robinson and Glenn Ruesswick to operate six kayak 83 
racks (Bog Bridge and Barrett’s Cove) expired in 2023, but operations continued. 84 
Original rental fees: $150 (residents), $200 (non-residents); town received 5% of annual 85 
revenue.  In April 2025, a new one-year agreement was drafted with Brian Robinson (now sole 86 
operator).  Updated fees: $150 (residents), $250 (non-residents); $2,000 paid to the town. 87 
At term end (Dec. 1, 2025), racks will be sold to the town for $8,000. 88 
Parks & Rec will assume the program moving forward. 89 
 90 
McKellar moved, Gross seconded to approve the license agreement with Brian Robinson 91 
for kayak racks for one year, Parks & Rec Dept will assume the program after the one 92 
year.  The motion passed on a 3-0-0 vote. 93 

 94 
b) Approval of Commercial Fireworks Policy (Minute Mark  48:30) 95 
Manager Caler stated though listed as a policy discussion, this issue is better categorized as a 96 

https://youtu.be/aT5Q2WRhsHo?t=795
https://youtu.be/aT5Q2WRhsHo?t=1230
https://youtu.be/aT5Q2WRhsHo?t=2088


Camde Select Board 
Minutes of Meeting – Page 3 
May 6, 2025 

directive on how town resources are used to support commercial fireworks events.  97 
Licensing authority for commercial displays lies with the State Fire Marshal’s Office, not the 98 
town.  The town prohibits consumer fireworks, but commercial shows may still occur with 99 
state approval.  A prior policy requires show organizers to notify the fire chief at least two 100 
weeks in advance so the fire department can be properly staffed.  The town has faced public 101 
complaints about commercial displays and provides significant staff support, especially from 102 
the Harbormaster.  The Select Board is being asked to provide clear direction: 103 

 104 
The public (CABG representatives and other public attendees) and  the Board continued 105 
discussing the need for a more structured approach to managing fireworks displays, 106 
including setting guidelines and schedules. They also considered the involvement of town 107 
staff and the need for a framework to protect both staff and business interest. 108 
 109 
McKellar moved, Gross seconded  to table the approval of the commercial fireworks 110 
policy until the Board can review more information from an ad hoc committee.  The 111 
motion passed on a 3-0-0 vote. 112 
 113 
The conversation ended with the decision to continue as usual for the current season, with 114 
the police, fire department, and Harbormaster  providing support as they have in the past. 115 
 116 
c) Approval to pursue Legal Action Gian Gallace: Violation of Chapter 15 Article 3 (Minute 117 

Mark 1:56:59) 118 
 119 
The Board discussed with Town Attorney Kelly  about pursuing legal action against a 120 
property owner violating Town Code Chapter15, Article3. The property owner had been 121 
non-compliant with consent agreements and had not voluntarily remediated the issues 122 
leading to the infestation. The legal action aims to impose fines and seek injunctive relief 123 
to prevent further violations. The legal fees are estimated to be around a few thousand 124 
dollars. 125 
 126 
Gross moved, Nolan seconded to pursue legal action again Gian Gallace; violation 127 
of  the towns code, Chapter 15, Article 3.  The motion passed on a 3-0-0 vote. 128 

 129 
7. Adjournment (Minute Mark 2:10:16) 130 
 McKellar moved, Gross seconded to adjourn the meeting and enter into executive 131 

session.  The motion passed on  a 3-0-0  vote. 132 
 133 
Executive Session:  1MRS 405(6)(E) Legal Duties 134 
 135 
The board came out of executive session at 9:00 pm, no action was taken. 136 

 137 

https://youtu.be/aT5Q2WRhsHo?t=7022
https://youtu.be/aT5Q2WRhsHo?t=7022
https://youtu.be/aT5Q2WRhsHo?t=7788


 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To: Select Board 
From: Town Manager 
Date: 05/15/2025 
Re: Public Hearings for Liquor Licenses 
 
 
 
PURPOSE 
To seek the Select Board's recommendation to approve renewal of the following liquor 
licenses: 

a) Barren’s Restaurant at 2 Wayfarer Drive for a renewal Class A Restaurant Liquor 
License 

b) Camden Charcuterie at 56 Elm Street, Unit A for a new Class A Restaurant Liquor 
License 

c) Peter Ott’s (new owners) at 16 Bay View Landing for a new Class A Restaurant 
Liquor License 

d) Salt Wharf at 3 Wayfarer Drive for a renewal Class A Restaurant Liquor License 
e) Villager Café at 25 Mechanic Street for a new Class A Restaurant Liquor License 

 
BACKGROUND 
Liquor licenses are issued by the Maine State Division of Liquor Licensing, and the town is 
required to conduct public hearings for establishments that have been in business for less 
than five years. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
A motion to recommend approval of these license renewals state aboveto the Maine 
State Division of Liquor Licensing 

























































































 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To: Select Board 

From: Town Manager 

Date: 05/15/2025 

Re: Consent Agenda 

 

PURPOSE 
Overview of the Consent Agenda. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
a) Approval of Victualer and Lodging licenses: Blue Barren, Camden Charcuterie, Camden Cone, 

Cedar Crest Inn, Fresh Restaurant, Harbor Dogs, Norumbega Inn, Paper Plane, Peter Ott’s, Salt 
Wharf, & Swan House 
 
These businesses have submitted complete applications, the appropriate application reviews have 
been made by the code enforcement officer, and the fire department has completed its annual life 
safety inspection. 

 
b) Approval of  temporary signs on the downtown lampposts for Camden Hills Regional High School 

March Thru Town on Monday, June 2nd  at 5:30 pm 
 
This is the school’s annual request to place planners on the lampposts in the downtown for the 
graduating seniors of Camden Hills Regional Highs School for their March thru Town.  The 
approval of these banners falls under the Select Board. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt the Consent Agenda. 



 

 
 
 
 
 

May 13, 2025 
 
The following establishments have submitted applications for approval of their VICTUALER LICENSES & 
LODGING LICENSES. The appropriate application reviews have been made by the code enforcement officer 
and fire chief. 

 
 

Business Name Location Lodging 
Exp. 

Victualer Exp. 

Blue Barren 2 Wayfarer Drive N/A 06/30/2026 
Camden Charcuterie 56 Elm Street, Ste A N/A 05/31/2026 
Camden Cone 31 Bay View Street N/A 05/31/2026 
Cedar Crest Inn 115 Elm Street 06/30/2026 N/A 
Fresh Restaurant 1 Bay View Landing  05/31/2026 
Harbor Dogs Public Landing  05/31/2026 
Norumbega Inn 63 High Street 05/31/2026 05/31/2026 
Paper Plane 1 Wayfarer Drive N/A 05/31/2026 
Peter Ott’s 16 Bay View Street  05/31/2026 
Salt Wharf 3 Wayfarer Drive N/A 06/30/2026 
Swan House 49 Mountain Street N/A 05/31/2026 

 
 
 

 
 

CAMDEN SELECT BOARD 
 
 

  

Susan Dorr, Chair Christopher Nolan, Vice Chair 
 
 

  

Alison McKellar Kenneth Gross 
 
 

 

Thomas Hedstrom 

Date of Approval 



06/2021 

TOWN OF CAMDEN 
TEMPORARY EVENT SIGNAGE 

The undersigned applicant hereby requests approval pursuant to the Camden Zoning Ordinance, Article XI, 
Section 4(12) to erect temporary signs on the town owned street lampposts in the downtown area. 

Applicant Name:  FIVE TOWN CSD (Contact: Amanda Simko)

Telephone #: 

Event Date: 

Email:  

Dates of Display  

In the space below, show all dimensions, wording and graphics. 

Applicant's Signature: 

Date Signed: 05/16/2025

************************************************************************ 

CAMDEN SELECT BOARD 

Date of Select Board Approval:  

Town of Camden POB 1207 Camden ME 04843       phone 207.236.3353         fax 207.236.7956 

16 signs at 48" x 8" x 0.25"

Red sign, graduation hat images, 
CHRHS logo, text "March Thru 
Town" & the date is noted (date 
will be updated prior to 
hanging).

207-236-3358 Amanda.Simko@fivetowns.net
6/2/2025 5:30pm 5/27/2025-6/3/2025



Expanding Camden’s Solar Generation Capacity: 
       Purchasing the Town’s existing solar installation and constructing additional arrays 

       A proposal for Select Board consideration on 5/20/25 by CamdenCAN’s Solar Working Group*  
 
Camden residents have consistently voiced strong support for the Town to increase its reliance on 
locally generated, renewable power. Voters in 2017 authorized construction of a solar array on town-
owned land at Sagamore Farm, which generates about 6 percent of the Town’s current electricity needs 
(including the Snow Bowl and wastewater treatment plant). The contract for that initial array allows 
Camden to purchase those panels this year, saving hundreds of thousands of dollars over the coming two 
decades. The Town can realize even greater economic and environmental benefits by substantially 
expanding its solar generation in 2025. The Select Board can realize these benefits by (1) authorizing 
purchase of the existing solar array, and (2) approving expedited research into options for expanded 
solar generation at Sagamore Farm and other local sites. 

 

1. The Select Board at its April 1, 2025 meeting discussed and informally agreed to temporarily use 
$203,558 from two capital reserve funds—the Energy Efficiency Fund and the Tree Conservation 
Fund—to buy the Sagamore Farm solar array built by ReVision Energy under a power purchasing 
agreement (PPA) with Camden in 2017. This acquisition would entail no budgetary cost, and the annual 
savings in electricity charges ($29,000 in electricity charges in 2025 at current electricity prices, rising 
annually along with assumed electricity prices to $35,575 in 2038) would fully repay the two funds 
within seven years. Annual reductions in electricity costs add up to a total saving to the town of over 
$450,000. All figures are based on cash-flow estimates from Revision. 

  

2. To obtain the $29,000 savings for 2025, the Town needs to inform ReVision of its plan to purchase the 
array at least 90 days before the September 18 contract renewal date under the terms of the PPA (by 
June 15, 2025). The next contractual opportunity for purchasing the panels would be June 15, 2026, and 
the town would forfeit $29,000 in electricity cost savings. 

 

3. ReVision would continue to maintain and operate the array so it would require no maintenance work 
by town employees or other contractors. ReVision says that, in calculating the savings estimate for 
Camden listed in Point 1 above, it “factored in operational costs for operation and maintenance services 
to keep the system running well.” The cash flow estimates provided by ReVision also make allowance 
for a diminution in output of 1 to 2 percent over time from the array.  

 

4. The Working Group also recommends that the Town authorize discussions with ReVision, other solar 
contractors and Coastal Enterprises Inc.’s Environmental Resilience Investment team to identify the 



most cost-effective means for installing substantially more solar generating capacity on the town 
property at Sagamore Farm. Solar contractors could also evaluate additional town properties as potential 
generation sites. The Solar Working Group can undertake initial research and report back details to town 
employees and the Select Board.   

Savings to town taxpayers from expanded solar are likely to be substantial. While the Working Group 
can provide more specific numbers in coming months, panels providing the 2,000 kW needed to cover 
all of Camden’s electrical usage could potentially be financed (through a low-interest, 10-year loan) at a 
monthly cost roughly equal to the Town’s current electricity expenditure. Camden could therefore rely 
completely on solar at no added cost to the Town during the first decade, after which it could realize 
over half a million dollars in electricity savings annually. Other Midcoast communities that have 
invested in solar power – like Lincolnville, Thomaston and St. George – have had uniformly positive 
experiences and realized extensive savings. 

 

5. Cynthia Hoeh Stancioff has volunteered to act as liaison between the Solar Working Group and the 
Camden Conservation Committee, of which she is a member.  

* Members of the Solar Working Group: Sarah Miller, Marina Schauffler, Barbara Spalding, Cynthia Hoeh Stancioff, 
Esperanza Stancioff, Paul Stancioff 

 

Additional information from other Midcoast communities is available in the following panel discussion from November 2024: 

 

Camden Talks Climate: “Town Solar—How 
Communities Can Support Renewable Energy and 
Save Money" 

youtu.be 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=MpYrerko11A
https://youtu.be/MpYrerko11A?feature=shared
https://youtu.be/MpYrerko11A?feature=shared
https://youtu.be/MpYrerko11A?feature=shared
https://youtu.be/MpYrerko11A?feature=shared


 

 Memo 

 
 PURPOSE 
The Beck family of Camden, owners of the sloop Heritage, which is licensed by the town as a 
commercial passenger vessel to operate from the town’s daysailer dock, is requesting to permanently 
transfer their daysailer business license from Heritage to Inherit the Wind.   
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2023, Heritage needed restoration work, and the owners asked for permission to temporarily run 
Inherit the Wind in its place until repairs could be completed. Due to difficulties encountered with the 
restoration, the owners are now requesting to make the change permanent.  Both vessels are 
Friendship sloops. 
 
There is precedent for the Select Board to allow owners/operators of commercial passenger vessels to 
transfer their daysailer/windjammer licenses between vessels. For example, in 2005 the license for 
Lazy Jack was transferred to the new Lazy Jack II, and in 2022 the schooner Mistress’ license was 
moved to the Swift. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The harbormaster supports allowing the license for the Heritage to be transferred to Inherit the Wind. 
The vessels are nearly identical in size and shape, and the permanent transfer will not impact on the 
current daysailer fleet operating from the public landing. 

To: Select Board 

From: Harbormaster Steve Pixley and Town Manager Audra Caler 

Date: May 16, 2025 

Re: 
 
Request for Permanent License Transfer - sloop Heritage to sloop Inherit the Wind  

  



From: Audra Caler
To: Janice Esancy
Subject: Fw: Request for Vessel Substitution – Sail Camden
Date: Friday, May 16, 2025 9:31:41 AM

From: Sloop Heritage <sailcamdencharters@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 7, 2025 10:28 AM
To: Audra Caler <acaler@camdenmaine.gov>
Subject: Request for Vessel Substitution – Sail Camden

Dear Audra,
I hope this message finds you well.
I’m writing to follow up on our conversation from a couple of weeks ago—apologies for the
delay in getting this to you.
I would like to formally request approval from you and any necessary members of the Camden
town government to operate an alternative vessel—currently named Inherit The Wind—in
place of Sloop Heritage, the vessel currently licensed under my small business, Sail Camden,
for daysail operations out of Camden Harbor.
Inherit The Wind is a Friendship Sloop, just as Heritage is, and she is presently owned by Ms.
Nancy Goulding of Holyoke, Massachusetts. Ms. Goulding has agreed to lease the vessel to
me (or to Sail Camden) for use during the upcoming summer season.
In the interest of full transparency, I would like to share that a restoration project begun nearly
three winters ago on Heritage has unfortunately stalled and now appears financially unviable
for us to complete. As a result, we anticipate submitting a formal request to permanently
substitute Inherit The Wind on our license following this season. In the meantime, we hope to
continue offering high-quality sailing experiences from Camden Harbor this summer with
Inherit The Wind.
Looking ahead, my wife and I are hopeful that we may be able to purchase Inherit The Wind
outright and find a qualified long-term steward for Heritage.
Thank you for your consideration and continued support. Please let me know if you need any
additional documentation or if there are steps I should take to move this request forward. I
realize the late nature of this request may make it tough to get timely feedback from Select
Board members. If you need me to reach out to the individually, please let me know. 
Warm regards,
Jeff Beck
Sail Camden

 (207) 230- 9340
      www.sailcamden.com
 sailcamdencharters@gmail.com

mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=C9BA6D15147B42E8AA61B6ED75DBC401-ACALER-BELL
mailto:jesancy@camdenmaine.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.sailcamden.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cjesancy%40camdenmaine.gov%7C1a60ffbff50747656f4708dd947dfad9%7C07998c4bceb44fa9ba3646e8cc01f4b0%7C1%7C0%7C638829991006640911%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1AgAI%2B31nIqngZK8fcWEmRRM9ZbQ3pkM1rDjjYdMArI%3D&reserved=0
mailto:sailcamdencharters@gmail.com






 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Select Board  

From: Police Chief Randy Gagne 

Date: May 13, 2025 

Re:   Cruiser Purchase 
  
 
PURPOSE: The Camden Police Department is requesting to replace its 2016 Ford SUV (gasoline 
powered) with a gas-hybrid 2025 Ford SUV pursuit-rated police vehicle. 
 
BACKGROUND: The Camden Police Department is requesting to make a direct purchase of a 
2025 Ford Police Interceptor Utility Hybrid SUV, which is currently available on the lot. This 
purchase will replace a 2016 non-hybrid model cruiser.  
 
The purchase will be made using funds from the Capital Reserves Police Cruiser budget line, 
which currently has a balance of $60,000. I am requesting a direct purchase now due to the 
potential for anticipated tariffs that would lead to higher prices, issues with availability and 
production slowdowns, among other concerns.  
 
Due to the low expected trade value, the department will repurpose the 2016 cruiser by 
transfering it to the Public Works Department for their use.  
 
Although this is not a fully electric-model cruiser, it is a compromise between fully gas and fully 
electric-powered models and offers a hybrid powertrain, electric motor and 3.3-liter V6 engine.  
Gas hybrid is the model currently being used by the department and has experienced very few 
issues.  
 
If we delay purchasing the available vehicle, I believe we will miss a good opportunity as the 
town would have to order a cruiser that could take up to six months to be delivered. In addition 
to the timing concerns, this past year we have had to deal with numerous repairs to our current 
again fleet because we now keep our vehicles on the road longer than we did previously. Finally, 
following research by Det. Sgt. Aaron Bailey on all three types of vehicles, we have concluded 
that a fully electric police cruiser would not be the right option for the department at this time. 
This research included conversations with Fire Chief Chris Farley, who drives a fully electric 
pickup truck for the fire department. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: I recommend a direct purchase of the 2025 Ford Police Interceptor 
Utility Hybrid from Quirk Ford of Augusta in the amount of $52,670. 















 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Select Board  

From: Jeremy Martin, Planning and Development Director  

Date: May 15, 2025 

Re: 39 Main Street – Dangerous Building  - Interim Order  
  

 
BACKGROUND and OVERVIEW  
As you may recall at the Dangerous Building Public Hearing(s) held  on February 18 and March 18  the Select 
Board generally outlined the deliverables that needed to be submitted by May 13, 2025.  The new owners,  Amy 
and David Lacouture, submitted the attached materials for your review. The submitted materials address items  
(a – h)  in the Interim Order, which is also attached.      
 
NEXT STEPS  
The next phase of this Dangerous Building process is for your further deliberation as to the plan for remediation that 
would include deadlines for completion of the work.  This next phase can either be a second Interim Order to implement 
the owner’s plan for remediation, and/or a final Order with  Town intervention ordered if the owners fail to remediate 
within a timeframe required by the Board.   Under this process, the Board has broad remedial options.   
 

























































































































































































 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Select Board  

From: Jeremy Martin, Planning and Development Director 

Date: May 14, 2025 

Re: 

 
Appointment of Andrew Lowe as Alternate Code Enforcement Officer and Plumbing 
Inspector 

  
 
PURPOSE 
In order to provide the necessary, timely and efficient inspection services for our customers when the 
Town’s CEO is out of the office,  I am requesting that the Select Board appoint Andrew Lowe, as an 
alternate Code Enforcement Officer (CEO) and alternate Local Plumbing Inspector (LPI.)    Andrew is 
currently employed as the CEO and LPI  for the Town of Rockport.  Prior to that Andrew  was the 
Assistant Fire Chief and was a certified and appointed CEO and LPI for the Town of Camden, providing 
back-up building and plumbing inspections for the Department.   
 
The Town has had previous arrangements with the  CEOs and LPIs from both Belfast and Rockport to 
provide coverage when the Town’s CEO was out of the office.    State law requires that in order to 
conduct inspections the inspector must be certified by the State  and must be appointed by the Town’s 
municipal officials and sworn in by the Town Clerk  
 
To provide similar back-up coverage for the Town of Rockport, they are in the process of appointing 
Clint Beveridge as an alternate for Rockport in order to provide the same back-up coverage that we are 
seeking.         
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is staff recommendation to appoint Andrew Lowe as alternate CEO and LPI for the Town of Camden.  



TOWN OF CAMDEN, MAINE

WASTEWATER DEPARTMENT 

JULY 1, 2025 - JUNE 30, 2026

FY 2025-2026 BUDGET



 2024-2025
Wastewater Revenues

Dept/Div:  Wastewater Revenues
 FY 23  FY 24  FY 25  FY 25  FY 26  FY 26 

Account Actuals Actuals Budget YTDs Proposed WW Comm.
91-21-01 Billed Accounts 1,951,608      2,103,221      2,242,539      1,704,653      2,431,951      -               
91-21-14 Legal Fees Reimbursement -                -               -               -               -               -               
91-21-13 Laterals -                23,530          -               2,170            -               -               
91-24-15 Miscellaneous Income 133               94,189          -               4,339            -               -               
91-24-16 Drain Layer Licenses 10                 -               -               1,100            -               -               
91-26-01 Use of Reserve 200,000         -               -               -               -               -               

2,151,751    2,220,940   2,242,539   1,712,262   2,431,951   -              
8.45% -100.00%

91-21-01 Billed Accounts
Usage Fee @ 11.80 per 100 CF

Change over FY 25



 2025-2026
 Wastewater Budget

Dept/Div:  60-01 Wastewater Administration
FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 25 FY 26 FY 26

Account Actuals Actuals Budget YTDs  Proposed WW Comm.

6001- 0101 Full-Time Wages 418,819       484,662       494,000       408,137       507,000        
6001- 0105 Part-Time Wages -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   

6001- 0110 Overtime Wages 7,178           3,033           6,000           3,218           6,000            
6001- 0139 Sewer Commissioners 2,500           2,500           2,500           2,500           2,500            
6001- 0501 FICA/Medicare 32,372         37,833         38,400         32,513         39,500          
6001- 0505 ICMA/MPERS 32,390         52,517         49,400         42,520         52,300          
6001- 0510 Health Insurance 126,572       143,864       162,400       122,941       169,500        
6001- 0151 Prorated TM/FD Wages -                  -                  33,892         33,892         35,000          
6001- 0152 Prorated Legal Contractor -                  -                  25,095         25,095         25,095          
6001- 1001 Office Supplies 4,704           3,419           3,000           1,441           2,500            
6001- 1003 Postage -                  17               150              463              100               
6001- 1004 Advertisements/Public Notices -                  -                  1,200           504              1,000            
6001- 1005 Dues & Publications 2,665           1,803           2,600           2,241           2,500            
6001- 1013 Safety Equipment 3,567           2,479           4,000           1,916           3,500            
6001- 1014 Gasoline/Diesel/Oil 3,815           9,153           8,000           1,695           6,000            
6001- 1201 Auto Mileage Reimbursement 44               407              2,500           1,243           1,000            
6001- 1202 Professional Development 825              1,054           2,000           2,366           3,000            
6001- 1205 Uniforms/Clothing Allowance 1,800           2,400           2,400           2,000           2,400            
6001- 1520 Communications 10,498         15,429         14,000         12,768         14,000          
6001- 2005 Vehicles Repairs & Maintenance 1,210           1,296           2,500           2,613           2,500            
6001- 2501 General Liability Insurance 2,280           23,694         25,000         23,056         25,000          
6001- 2502 Auto/Mobile Equip Insurance 3,471           -                  -                  -                  -                   
6001- 2503 Property Insurance 13,060         -                  -                  -                  -                   
6001- 2506 Public Officials Liability 995              -                  -                  -                  -                   
6001- 2509 Unemployment 847              707              2,000           -                  2,000            
6001- 2510 Workers' Compensation 14,536         18,066         13,500         11,336         13,500          
6001- 3001 Legal Fees 4,325           5,800           1,000           -                  1,000            
6001- 3007 Eng & Professional Services 11,996         5,248           5,000           -                  5,000            
6001- 3021 Drug Testing, Fitness Eval. 120              205              225              178              225               
6001- 3025 Audit 2,100           2,100           2,500           3,875           3,500            
6001- 3028 GIS Updates 2,948           20,126         20,000         19,924         20,000          
6001- 3041 Information Technology 9,713           19,763         21,500         15,703         31,509          
6001- 3063 Billing Service-Maine Water 31,107         31,156         30,000         28,619         36,976          

746,457     888,731     974,762     802,757     1,014,105   -                  
4.04% -100.00%

6001- 0101 Full-Time Wages
1/2 WW Superintendent 1/2 Town Engineer, 1/2 Office Coordinator, 1 Facility Manager/Operator, 2 Operators,  
2 Mechanic/Operators

6001- 0110 Overtime Wages
Overtime for weekend call-ins

6001- 0139 Sewer Commissioners
The Select Board act as the Wastewater Sewer Commissioners and each receives an annual $500 stipend.  

6001- 0501 FICA/Medicare
7.65% Employer share of FICA/Medicare

Change over FY 25

3



 2025-2026
 Wastewater Budget

6001- 0505 ICMA/MPERS
The employer matches up to 5% for employees enrolled in ICMA.
The employer pays 9.9% for employees enrolled in the Maine State Retirement System.

6001- 0510 Health Insurance   
Health insurance coverage per Town Personnel Policy

6001- 1001 Office Supplies

Paper, toner, etc. Essential office and computer supplies

6001- 1003 Postage

6001- 1004 Advertisements/Public Notices

6001- 1005 Dues & Publications

Professional memberships & publications relevent to the wastewater treatment field.

6001- 1013 Safety Equipment

Gear required to be used when working with chemicals or hazards associated with the work being done.
Gloves, eyewash, goggles, steel toe work boots Etc.

6001- 1014 Gasoline, Diesel, Oil
Lubricants for all vehicles and equipment.

6001- 1201 Auto Mileage Reimbursement
Mileage for employees to attend training sessions.  Reimbursement based on rate established by IRS.

6001- 1202 Professional Development
Training for operator certification

6001- 1520 Communications
Funding for telephones, pagers and cell phone stipends

6001- 2005 Vehicles Repairs & Maintenance
Covers the cost of routine maintenance and replacement parts for all Wastewater Dept. vehicles.

6001- 2509 Unemployment
Required unemployment coverage

6001- 2510 Workers' Compensation
Wastewater Dept. share of workers' compensation premium

6001- 3001 Legal Fees

6001- 3021 Drug Testing, Fitness Eval.

4



 2025-2026
 Wastewater Budget

6001- 3025 Audit
Wastewater Dept. share of annual audit services

6001- 3007 Eng & Professional Services

6001- 3063 Billing Service-Maine Water
The Maine Water Company is contracted to provide billing services for customers of the system.  

6001- 3028 GIS Updates
Covers the cost of maintaining the Wastewater data in the Town's GIS data base. 

6001- 3041 Information Technology

6001- 3063 Billing Service-Maine Water

Annual Licensing, Software & Support: (SCADA, General Service $3,500, Software License $3,500, I Fix license 
$4,500), HACH Wims license $2,754, WIN911 alarm notification $975, Harbor digital IT support $10,000, TV Van 
Camera Software $3,500, Auto Cad license $2,780. Total: $31,509

Most of the bills go out in January, April, July & October as well as rebills and final bills. The number of bills we 
sent in 2024 for the first half of the year 3774 * billing rate of $4.75 for a total of $17,926.50 and the number 
of bills sent in the second half of 2024 3810 * new billing rate of $5.00 =$19,050.00.  ($17,926.50 + $19,050.00 
= $36,976.50)

5



 2025-2026
 Wastewater Budget

Dept/Div:  60-05 Sewer Plant and Collections - Operatons & Maintenance
FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 25 FY 26 FY 26

Account Actuals Actuals Budget YTDs  Proposed WW Comm.

6005- 1006 Cleaning & Building Supplies 2,115           1,611           1,000           1,777           2,000            
6005- 1061 Chemicals 46,119         48,604         74,000         56,454         74,000          
6005- 1501 Electricity 102,075       123,983       137,000       91,749         130,000        
6005- 1505 Heating Fuel 8,128           15,752         14,000         15,795         13,000          
6005- 1510 Water/Sewer 97               2,713           5,000           1,959           3,000            
6005- 2061 Collection System Maint. 10,144         32,531         40,000         23,108         40,000          
6005- 2062 Plant Repairs & Maint. 45,375         88,942         40,000         47,176         45,000          
6005- 3029 Laboratory Services 7,108           8,282           8,000           6,337           8,000            
6005- 3062 Sludge Removal 157,451       90,815         131,680       68,474         120,000        
6005- 3160 Inspections, Discharge Fees 4,185           2,860           5,000           -                  3,000            

382,797     416,093     455,680     312,829     438,000      -                  
-3.88% -100.00%

6005- 1006 Cleaning & Building Supplies

6005- 1061 Chemicals
Historic chemical usage for Sodium Hypochlorite (chlorine) is 5,000 gallons and is used for effluent 
disinfection and 450 gal. Sodium Bisulfite to remove chlorine before discharging effluent to harbor and 
1,650 gal. of Cationic Polymer used in the process of sludge dewatering using the new centerfuge 
This will be our second year of year-round disinfection

6005- 1501 Electricity
Based on historic usage

6005- 1505 Heating Fuel
Heat for control building and shop at Wastewater treatment plant.

6005- 1510 Water/Sewer
General plant water, and water used in the truck mounted sewer flushing machine.

6005- 2061 Collection System Maintenance
To pay for minor repairs to the wastewater collection system dealling with I & I.  A typical project would be 
repairing manholes and adjusting manhole frames in conjunction with road rebuilding and resurfacing projects.

6005- 2062 Plant Repairs & Maint.
To pay for minor repairs to the wastewater treatment plant.  A typical project would be replacing worn out equipment parts.
In addition to an annual hoist inspection

6005- 3029 Laboratory Services
Our discharge license, issued by the DEP, requires that we perform tests to confirm our compliance.
We are also required to test the sludge that we send to be landfilled.

6005- 3062 Sludge Removal
Includes liners for roll off To cover the cost of sludge disposal.  Our waste activated sludge is trucked to Unity 
where it is landfilled.

6005- 3160 Inspections, Discharge Fees
Covers Maine DEP Wastewater Discharge License Fee

Change over FY 25

6



 2025-2026
 Wastewater Budget

Dept/Div:  60-15  Pump Station Operations & Maintenance
FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 25 FY 26 FY 26

Account Actuals Actuals Budget YTDs  Proposed WW Comm.

6015- 1501 Electricity 79,169         69,321         80,000         59,453         80,000          
6015- 1510 Water/Sewer 1,872           1,623           2,000           1,441           2,000            
6015- 2017 Pump Station Maintenance 52,557         12,611         30,000         44,561         33,750          
6015- 3032 Trash Removal 792              18               500              40               500               
6015- 3035 Security Services 4,573           1,848           1,400           1,308           1,400            

138,963     85,421       113,900     106,803     117,650      -                  
3.29% -100.00%

6015- 1501 Electricity
Monthly electricity costs for seven Pump Stations.

6015- 1510 Water/Sewer
Water used for general clean up at Rawson Ave. and Public Landing pump stations, also used to 
administer Sodium Bisulfite for seasonal effluent dechlorination at Public Landing pump station.

6015- 2017 Pump Station Maintenance

6015- 3035 Security Services
Covers the cost for monitoring the alarm systems at the treatment plant and the seven pump stations.
$327 per quarter x 4 = $1,400

Dept/Div:  60-20 Capital Reserves
FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 25 FY 26 FY 26

Account Actuals Actuals Budget YTDs  Proposed WW Comm.

Capital Reserves
6020- 6262 Treatment Plant/WW Equip -                  -                  -                  -                  50,000          -                  
6020- 6363 I & I Reserve -                  -                  25,000         25,000         -                   -                  
6020- 6364 Collection System Reserve -                  50,000         25,000         25,000         -                   -                  
6020- 6266 WW Upgrade Reserve 500,000       -                  -                  -                  100,000        -                  
6020-NEW Infrastructure BAN Interest -                  -                  -                  -                  64,000          -                  
6020- 6365 WW Pump Station Reserve -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  

500,000     50,000       50,000       50,000       214,000      -                  
328.00% -100.00%

6020- 6262 Treatment Plant/WW Equip:  For upgrading equipment primarily at the treatment plant

6020- 6363 I & I Reserve:  To be used for future maintenance of the collection system to eliminate sources of inflow & infiltration

6020- 6364 Collection System Reserve:  Minor sewer collection system replacement, repair and extension projects

6020- 6365 WW Pump Station Reserve:  For equip. repair and upgrade projects beyond the scope of the routine maintenance budget

6020- 6266 WW Upgrade Reserve:  Required reserve equal to one year's bond payment for the WW upgrade 

6020- NEW Infrastructure BAN Interest:  Proportional share of the BAN interest for the multi-purpose $12.5M infrastructure project

Change over FY 25

For general pump station repairs and replacement parts.  Also for a generator general services contract for 
$3,750, Rawson Ave Pump rebuild $7,500, Sea St Pump rebuld $7,500, Bay View Generator Maintenance 
$2,500, Bay View Generator building siding $6,000.  

Change over FY 25

7



 2025-2026
 Wastewater Budget

Dept/Div:  60-25 Capital Improvements
FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 25 FY 26 FY 26

Account Actuals Actuals Budget YTDs  Proposed WW Comm.

6025- 3,653 Bay View Pump Station Awning or Loading Dock-              -              -              -              -               

6025- 3690 Pickup Truck -              -              -              -              -               
6025- 3661 Mechanic Street Pipe Liner -              -              -              -              -               
6025- 3631 Computers 1,525           2,760           -              -              -               
6025- 3651 Pump Station Upgrades -              -              -              -              -               

6025- 3652 Inflow & Infiltration Study 46,572         -              -              19,948         -               
6025- 3670 Catch Basin -              -              -              -              -               
6025- 3683 Limerock/Mechanic St. Manholes -              -              -              -              -               
6025- 3684 Main & Grove Street Pipe/Line Repair -              -              -              -              -               
6025- 3685 Pearl St. Pipe/Manholes (Park to John) 451,557       219,365       -              113,510       -               
6025- 3686 Cobb Hill Rd. Culvert Replacement -              -              -              -              -               

499,654     222,125     -             133,458     -              -             
#DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Dept/Div:  60-30 Debt Service
FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 25 FY 26 FY 26

Account Actuals Actuals Budget YTDs  Proposed WW Comm.

Debt Service

6030- 3805 WW Upgrade Bond Principal -              -              337,993       337,993       346,443        

6030- 3806 WW Upgrade Bond Interest -              642,250       304,257       304,257       295,806        
6030- 4245 Excavator Loan Payment 5,947           5,947           5,947           5,947           5,947            

5,947          648,197     648,197     648,197     648,196      -                  
0.00% -100.00%

 

TOTAL WASTEWATER EXPENSE 2,273,818  2,310,567  2,242,539  2,054,044  2,431,951   -                  
8.45% -100.00%

6156-6364 Collection System Reserve - Offset to Pearl Street Project200,000       

NET WASTEWATER EXPENSE 2,073,818  2,310,567  2,242,539  2,054,044  2,431,951   -                  
8.45% -100.00%

Use of Reserves

Change over FY 25

Change over FY 25

Change over FY 25

Change over FY 25

8



 2025-2026
 Wastewater Budget

Proposed Wastewater Reserve Projects

6156-6161 WW Admin Accrued Benefits 19,012         
6156-6262 Treatment Plant/WW Equipment 106,030       
6156-6363 Collection System-I&I Reserve 19,577         
6156-6364 Collection System Reserve 36,201         
6156-6465 Pump Station Reserve 195,268       
6156-6266 Plant System Upgrade Reserve 1,140           

Total Reserves: 377,228     

WASTEWATER DEPARTMENT OPERATIONS
Wastewater User Rate:  Wastewater is billed at a base rate for each 100 cubic feet

WASTEWATER I & I FEE:  Before any building located in a development, and requiring subdivision approval or site plan review
is connected to the public sewer, the owner must pay an I & I abatement fee based on the Construction Cost Index
found in the Engineering News-Record (January, 2024).

Approved by Board of Wastewater Commissioners

FY 25 Rate:  $4.15

Reserve Balances

FY 25 Per 100 Cubic Feet:  $10.88
FY 26 Per 100 Cubic Feet:  $11.80

FY 24 Rate:  $4.04

9



   
 

1 
 

WASTEWATER DISCHARGE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF 
CAMDEN AND THE TOWN OF ROCKPORT 

 
This AGREEEMENT made this ____ day of June, 2025, by and between the Camden 

Wastewater Commissioners on behalf of the Town of Camden, a municipal corporation located 
in the County of Knox and State of Maine (hereinafter referred to as “Camden”), and the 
Rockport Wastewater Commissioners on behalf of the Town of Rockport (hereinafter referred 
to as “Rockport”), a municipal corporation located in the County of Knox and State of Maine. 

I. PURPOSE 
The purpose of this agreement is to provide for the short-term wastewater disposal 
needs of Rockport and to allow time for both towns to evaluate future capacity 
requirements and treatment goals. This agreement sets rates and limits that are 
designed to prevent overburdening the infrastructure in Camden that could result in 
environmental degradation such as permit exceedances of treated effluent to Camden 
Harbor or the overflow of untreated sewage at the Rawson Avenue Pump Station into 
the Megunticook River. Within two years of the date of this agreement, both towns 
agree to meet and provide an update on capacity and treatment needs relevant to 
Rockport continuing as a Camden wastewater customer. 
 

II. MUTUAL CONVENANTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
A. It is hereby agreed that Camden bears the responsibility for providing adequate 

treatment of waste flows in conformance with all applicable statutes, ordinances, 
regulations, and permits and is solely responsible for securing all permits, licenses, 
insurance coverage, and authorizations incident to that charge. 

B. Both parties further agree to adopt, keep in effect and from time to time amend a 
sewer use ordinance and an industrial pretreatment ordinance and regulations 
which shall include but shall not be limited to provisions which will specify the level 
of pretreatment required of all non-domestic wastewaters and the limits of toxicity 
and characteristics that may be otherwise damaging to the biological process, as 
required by State and Federal regulations.   

C. The metering facility shall be maintained by Rockport. Metering devices shall be of a 
continuous recording totalizing type so that, by subtraction, the volume of flow in 
any given period may be obtained. Representatives of both Rockport and Camden 
shall have access to the metering installation and other accounting records for 
purposes of inspection and verification of measurements. The meter shall be 
checked and calibrated by an independent contractor at Rockport’s expense. 

D. Reporting requirements: Rockport wastewater flow data reports shall be provided to 
the Camden Wastewater Treatment facility by the seventh day of the month on 
each quarterly billing month. The quarterly billing months are defined as January, 



   
 

2 
 

April, July and October. Each quarterly report shall provide separate monthly 
information from each metered location1 for the following:  
(1) Daily total flow in gallons. (2) Average daily flow in gallons for each month. (3) 
Monthly total flow in gallons. Flow data reports shall represent Rockport’s total 
wastewater flow and identify the location of where the flow data is being taken 
from. Flow data reports shall be signed by an authorized Rockport wastewater 
representative verifying the information to be accurate.  

E. When Camden revises its Sewer Use Ordinance and such revisions are relevant to 
Camden’s ability to properly treat Rockport’s wastewater, Camden shall forward a 
copy of the revisions to Rockport.   

F. Rockport will maintain current information on industrial users located in its 
jurisdiction.  Rockport will update its industrial waste survey annually for industrial 
users located in its jurisdiction.  Upon request, Rockport will forward a copy of this 
survey to Camden. 

G. Camden shall issue permits to industrial users required to be permitted under their 
sewer use ordinances.  Permits must be issued prior to any discharge.  Permits must 
contain, at a minimum, appropriate effluent limitations, monitoring and reporting 
requirements, a statement of duration, a statement of non-transferability, a 
statement of applicable civil and criminal penalties, and any other conditions 
required by State and Federal regulatory requirements and guidance.  

H. Rockport shall meet the following flow limits and meet the required testing limits in 
the following table: 

Parameter Measurement 
Frequency 

Sample Type 
 

Limit 
 

Flow 
 

Continuous Recorder <90,000 GPD –  
No surcharge 

>90,000 - 100,000 
GPD - 20% surcharge 

BOD Quarterly 24 hr Composite Report 
TSS Quarterly 24 hr Composite Report 
pH Quarterly Grab Report 
FOG Quarterly Grab 100 mg/L 
Total Mercury Annually Grab Report 
Total PFAS (sum of 6) Annually Grab Report 
*Note: Nitrogen testing may be required if Camden’s future permit has imposed 
Nitrogen limits. 

 
I. The Towns of Rockport and Camden shall respectively enforce the provisions of their 

sewer use ordinances including adequate enforcement action against non-compliant 
users on a timely basis. 

 
1 The two metered locations include Camden Street and the Country Inn. 



   
 

3 
 

 
III. FLOW GUARANTEED UPON CONDITIONS STATED 

A. Camden guarantees its wastewater treatment plant will have a total capacity 
sufficient to accommodate a maximum of 90,000 gallons per day; provided, 
however, Rockport’s wastewater is in compliance with Chapter 224-6 of Camden’s 
Sewer Code, with the exception of unknown sources of inflow and infiltration, which 
when identified, Rockport makes a good faith effort to correct, and provided that 
the flow shall be delivered to the Camden system at the mutually agreed 
interconnection point2 in quantities within the flow capacity of the interconnecting 
conveyance line3.  In the event that the 90,000 gallons per day monthly average is 
exceeded, Camden shall have the right to impose a penalty of $10,000 per month. 
 

IV. CHARGES AND FEES 
A. Camden shall charge Rockport a fixed rate for the duration of this agreement. A  

fixed rate of $10.88 per 100 cubic feet (equal to the rate paid by Camden residential 
users in financial year 2024-2025). Fees will be adjusted annually during the duration 
of this agreement based on the previous calendar year average of the Consumer 
Price Index. Rockport will use its best efforts to ensure that total flow does not 
exceed 90,000 gallons in a 24-hour period.  Flow received in excess of 90,000 gallons 
per day shall incur a 20% surcharge for the totality of flow over the 24-hours period 
when the overage of 90,000 gal/day occurred. 

B. In the event that Rockport exceeds the quarterly FOG limit of 100mg/L there will be 
a 10% surcharge applied to the wastewater bill for that quarter, unless Rockport 
retests and shows compliance with the limit. 

C. Camden shall bill Rockport quarterly through the Maine Water Company by 
submitting a statement of metered sewerage charges. Rockport shall pay any such 
charges assessed within (30) days of receipt of the said statement. 

D. Rockport shall provide Camden at least annually with the number of users presently 
being served or able to be served by the Rockport collection system.  For purposes 
of the agreement, each dwelling unit and each separate business and each non-
industrial commercial enterprise served or able to be served shall be considered a 
separate user or customer.   

E. Upon the expiration of this agreement, unless amended, Rockport will be charged a 
fee based upon the Camden residential user metered sewage rate in 2029-2030 plus 
a 15% surcharge. 

 
V. ADMINISTRATION 

 
2 Camden Street 
3 Rawson Avenue force main. 



   
 

4 
 

A. The Camden Wastewater Commissioners or the Camden Wastewater 
Superintendent shall have the sole responsibility for the operation and 
administration of this Agreement, except for those responsibilities expressly 
delegated to the Rockport Wastewater Commissioners as described herein.   

B. Rockport shall have the obligations and rights afforded to it hereunder, together 
with all necessary powers incident thereto including, but not limited to, the right to 
inspect any and all records relating to the operation and maintenance of the 
treatment plant and its attendant physical plant as well as the operations, metering 
and measuring activities at all jointly used facilities. 
 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
A. Rockport shall inform Camden when a commercial or industrial business proposes to 

operate, or expand output, in Rockport when the proposed new business’ 
wastewater shall be directed to the Camden sewer system.  If the new source of 
wastewater is a high strength source of Biological Oxygen Demand and/or Total 
Suspended Solids, or other substances detrimental to an activated sludge treatment 
system, Rockport shall provide the strength per gallon of wastewater of each of 
these pollutants and a pretreatment plan to minimize impacts to the wastewater 
treatment plant from these pollutants. 

B. Rockport shall provide Camden with the Annual Industrial user survey, as part of the 
annual reporting requirements.  Rockport shall also evaluate each new potential 
sewer user as part of the sewer connection permit process to determine if the 
“permittee” is a Categorical Industrial User (CIU) or a Significant Industrial User (SIU) 
as defined in 40 CFR 403.6 and 40 CFR chapter I, subchapter N. If any new or existing 
sewer user or permittee falls into the category of a CIU or a SIU, Rockport shall 
notify Camden, and those users shall be included in the Camden Industrial User 
program and comply with all the requirements of the Camden Industrial User 
Program. 

C. Rockport shall calibrate and perform preventive maintenance on all flow recording 
equipment annually, by an independent firm.  The results shall be provided as part 
of the annual reporting requirements. 
 

VII. AMENDMENTS AND SEVERANCE 
A. This Agreement may be modified or amended by mutual agreement of both parties 

by their respective Wastewater Commissioners, or their authorized representatives, 
evidenced by a duly executed instrument in writing attached hereto.  Further, the 
respective Wastewater Commissioners, or their authorized representatives, shall 
have the authority to execute on behalf of their Towns mutually agreed upon 
amendments to the Agreement from time to time which do not substantially alter 
the intent of this Agreement and are solely for the convenience of both parties, 
including the development of an industrial cost recovery agreement, if required; 



   
 

5 
 

provided, however,  the Wastewater Commissioners of Camden shall not thereby 
irrevocably relinquish any of their rights or authority created or arising from this 
Agreement.  If any portion of this Agreement is found to be invalid, contrary to law, 
or unenforceable, the balance of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, 
unless such severance serves to substantially impair the Purpose of this Agreement. 

 
VIII. DURATION 

A. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for five (5) years and may be 
extended by mutual agreement of the parties hereto, evidenced by a duly executed 
instrument in writing attached hereto. 
 

IX. EFFECTIVE DATE 
This agreement shall not become effective until signed by duly authorized 
representatives from each party. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed and dated this agreement below.  The 
effective date of the agreement shall be the last date on which it was signed. 
 

SIGNED, SEALED and DELIVERED 

 

in the presence of: 

 


	Select Board Agenda 05.20.25
	2. Approval of Minutes
	Board Minutes 4-15-25
	Board Minutes 05-15-25
	3. Public Hearings for Liquor Licenses
	a. Blue Barren Liquor
	b. Camden Charcuterie Liquor
	c. Peter Ott's Liquor
	d. Salt Wharf Liquor
	e. Villager Cafe Liquor
	4. Consent Agenda
	a. Victualer & Lodging Licenses
	b. Banner Request for March Thru Town
	7. Discussion Items
	a. Sagamore Farm Solar Array
	8. Action Items
	a. Daysailer request Inherit the Wind
	b. Approval of Cruiser Purchase
	c. Approval of 39 Main Street Dangerous Building Order
	* Copy of Order
	* Insurance
	*Engineering Form
	*General Contractor
	*MDOT
	* Electrician
	* Propane
	* Wastewater
	* Financial capacity
	*National Register of Historic Places
	d. Confirmation of Alternate CEO
	e.  Approval of FY 26 Wastewater Budget
	f. Approval of Wastewater Agreement

	Applicant Name: 
	undefined: 
	Email: 
	Event Date: 
	Dates of Display: 
	Town of Camden POB 1207 Camden ME 04843 phone 2072363353 fax 2072367956: 
	s Signature 2: 
	CAMDEN SELECT BOARD 1: 
	CAMDEN SELECT BOARD 2: 
	1: 
	2: 
	undefined_2: 
	Date of Select Board Approval: 


